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INTRODUCTION

I, the Chairman of the Public Accounts Committee, as authorised
" by the Committee, do present on their behalf this Sixty-third Report
en the Appropriation Accounts (Civil), 1964-65, Audit Report (Civil),
1966 and Audit Report (Commercial), 1966 in so far as they relate to
the Ministries of Transport and Aviation (Department of Transport,
Shipping and Tourism) and Works, Housing & Urban Development.

2. The Appropriation Accounts (Civil), 1964-65 and Audit Report
(Civil), 1965 were laid on the Table of the House on the 15th March,
1966 and Audit Report (Commercial), 1966 on the 17th May, 1966.
The Committee considered these'at their sittings held on 1st, 2nd and
3rd September, 1966. The minutes of these sittings form part of the
Report (Part II)®.

3. The Committee considered and finalised the Report at their
sitting held on the 24th November, 1966.

4. A statement showing the summary of the main conclusions/
recommendations of the Committee is appended to the Report (Ap-
pendix VI). For facility of reference these have been printed in
thick type in the body of the Report.

5. The Committee place on record their appreciation of the assis-
tance rendered to them in their examination of these accounts by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

They would also like to express their thanks to the officers of the
Ministries etc. concerned, for the co-operation extended by them in
giving information to the Committee during the course of evidence.

NeEw DreLui; R. R. MORARKA,
November 25, 1966. _ Chairman,
Agrahayana 4, 1888 (Saka). Public Accounts Committee.

®Not printed. (One cyclostyled laid on the Table of the House and five copies
placed in Parliament( Libr:rycy.) e eony

)



CHAPTER 1
Audit Report (Civil), 1966

MINISTRY OF TRANSPORT AND AVIATION
(Department of Transport, Shipping & Tourism)
Unnecessary payment to a contractor—Para 72, pages 81-82:

The work of the construction of a bridge over the river Bhagirathsi
at Berhampur was entrusted in November, 1960 to a firm on a ‘lump
sum’ contract basis for Rs. 22:18 lakhs; the work was scheduled to
be completed by 31 August 1963, provided there were no hold-ups
beyond the content of the contractor.

1.2. In February, 1963, when only 37 per cent of the work (in terms
ef money value) had been completed in 80 per cent of the allotted
time, a supplementary agreement was entered into with the contrator
for making the bridge traffic-worthy by 31 August, 1963 at an addi-
tional premium of Rs. 350 lakhs to compensate the contractor for
additional labour, plant and equipment required for timely completion
and to provide for additional staging and piling so that work would
proceed even in the event of an early flood. The agreement provided
inter alia that the payment of premium to the contractor would not
be subject to completion of the work by the due date (31 August,
1963) but be made irrevocably, provided the contractor made a sincere
endeavour to meet the target date and that no charge of incompe-
tence or malafides could be attributed to him. The amount was paid
in February, 1963.

1.3. In June, 1963 the Executive Engineer complained that ne
effective steps had been taken by the contractor since middle of
May, 1963 to expedite the work in spite of repeated requests.

1.4. On 10 July, 1963 a portion of the bridge collapsed on account
of floods, the value of which was estimated at Rs. 2:-67 lakhs. Out of
this, a sum of Rs. 1.14 lakhs was paid after the event. A technical
committee appointed in August, 1963 to investigate into the causes of
the collapse has not yet submitted its report and the bridge is still
incomplete (September, 1965).

1.5. The Committee enquired how it was ensured by Government
while entering into supplementary agreement in February, 1963 that
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the contractor would be able to complete the remaining 63 per cent
of the work in the balance 20 per cent of time allotted i.e. during the
next 6 months (February, 1963 to August 1963). The Secretary of
the Ministry stated that in view of the urgency caused by Chinese
aggression, paying extra money of Rs. 3'5 lakhs was the only way in
which the expeditious construction of the bridge could be ensured.
At that time the matter was discussed with the contractor. The con-
tractor gave a scheme which showed that the work could be com-
pleted by August, 1963. The bridge consisted of three very large
spans. - It was the largest span that was attempted in India in pre-
stressed concrete. It was of 257 feet with two small side spans. The
idea was to construct one span at a time, that is collecting the stag-
ing material and forms for one span, erect the staging materials from
the bed of the river, then cast the concrete and move the staging
materials and forms on to the next span at the other end. That was
the original programme. When they wanted to expedite the cons-
truction, the contractor suggested that the staging material could be
brought for two spans instead of one. By the time, the two spans
would be completed, it was feared that the river would be in floods.
It would not then be possible to erect the staging in the bed of the
river for the middle span. It was, therefore, decided that launching
trusses would be brought by the contractor. These were very big
steel or aluminium structural girders by which a girder of prestressed
concrete which weighed 100 or 200 tons could be easily taken across
bodily and placed in position. Thus, they expected that work to be
completed by August, 1963. That would have been possible if acci-
dent had not occurred to one of the spans. In reply to a question, the
witness stated that the construction of the bridge .was completed in
the middle of July, 1966.

1.6. The Committee pointed out that as originally scheduled the
construction of the bridge was to be completed by August 1963 and
no extra payment was to be made. Even after paying extra amount
of Rs. 3'5 lakhs it was not completed by August, 1963 and it was com-
pleted only in July, 1966. The witness stated that when they con-
sidered the question of making extra payment of Rs. 3-5 lakhs they
examined the reason why the contractor was not in a position to com-
plete the work as originally stipulated. There were certain reasons
for delays over which he had no control. In the agreement itself the
‘contractor had mentioned that this period was subject to delays be-
yond his control. For doing this work, the Government was to sup-
ply certain material such as high tensile steel which was used for
reinforcement of superstructure. The witness added that they could
sot supply that steel till Feb.-March, 1863. The steel was imported



from Japan against DLF loans (not for this particular work). On
receipt, it was found that it was not strong enough for the design
strength allowed for the bridge. So, they had to get the steel from
another source. The work was delayed on that account.

1.7. In reply to a question, the witness stated that according to the
original condition of the contract, foreign exchange was to be releas-
ed by them to the contractor for high tensile steel, sheeting material,
pre-stressing equipment such as jack, anchor cones, etc. The amount
estimated was £ 16,810. Then they found that they could give him
steel which they were already arranging against DLF loans. After
deducting for that item, the amount of foreign exchange required
was £ 5,770. Even that amount was not released fully. He added
that foreign exchange worth £ 4280 was released in two instalments
one on 18th December, 1962 and the other on 10th January, 1963. The
Committee pointed out that the contractor applied for the foreign
exchange in June, 1961 and Government released it only in Decem-
ber, 1962 and January, 1963 and enquired the reason for this delay.
The witness stated that it was cleared from various sections of the
Ministries of Government of India and the time taken in the case was
normal. In reply to a question, the witness added that for processing
the case, six months were required. But normally it was found that
the processing took much longer time because when foreign exchange
was to be released every body was very cautious.

1.8. The witness admitted that there was delay in processing this
case. There was a little delay in their Ministry but mostly the delay
was in the process when it was referred to outside authorities e.g.
Finance.

1.9. The Committee regret to note that even though the contrac-
tor finally applied for foreign exchange formally in June, 1961, the
Ministry could get the foreign exchange only in December, 1962, and
January, 1963 i.e. after 18 months. The Committee feel that this
time of 18 months in getting the foreign exchange released was too
long and it has cost the exchequer both extra money and time. They
desire that the Ministry of Transport and the Ministry of Finance
should look in!o the delays which have taken place at different stages
and take suitable remedial measures.

1.10. The Committee enquired the reasons why the contractor
applied late Yor the release of foreign exchange. The work was
entrusted to the contractor in November, 1960 and he applied for
foreign exchange in June, 1961. The witness stated that it was point-
ed out to the contractor that they could get the cones manufactured
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within the country. So he did not ask for foreign exchange for this
item initially. Then, the contractor said that he would require a cer-
tain special steel that was used in the cone. The witness added that
the contractor had to make all these preliminary enquiries and find
out market rates of various items before he could make his applica-
tion. The Committee pointed out that those items were normal and
usual and the contractor could have known this and applied in time.

1.11. The Committee desired to know, how many notices were
given to this contractor by the Department so as to see whether he
had carried out the prescribed percentage of work in each quarter as
per the agreement. The witness replied that in this contract, from
the very beginning the conditions were a little out of the ordinary.
Here the whole foundations were to be sunk on wells. When the
wells were being sunk, they came across artesian conditions. Water
started bubbling up from the well. So the sinking of foundations
in that condition became a little difficult and had to be proceeded
with very cautiously. Naturally, it took more time. Secondly, unless
the steel was arranged, the contractor would not be in a position to
work the staging, otherwise floods would wash away everything. The
contractor had to be assured of the supply of all the requisite mate-
rial. The people at site knew that because of the conditions which
were very difficult to over-come, the contractor was not in a position
to proceed at a much faster pace.

1.12. In reply to a question, the witness stated that in the supple-
mentary agreement entered into in February-March, 1963 with the
contractor, they did not mention about the position of the delay which .
had occurred till then. He added that they examined that question
and they were satisfied themselves that there had been delay due
to reasons beyond the control of the contractor and that if they
wanted to expedite the work, they might have to incur some extra
amount if demanded by the contractor. They were quite hopeful im
February, 1963 that the contractor would be able to complete the job

by August, 1963.

1.13. On being asked whether the span collapsed due to some
technical defect, the witness stated that “there must be some defect,
otherwise it would not have collapsed”. He added that there was no
defect in the structure and design. The defect seemed to be in the
temporary support which was to be removed. The technical Com-
mittee which was appointed to investigate the causes of the collapse
had not yet given its report.



1.14 In reply to a question, the witness stated that they examined
the design very thoroughly. They found no flaw in the design. They
had reconstructed on the same design and the bridge was now being
used.

1.15. On being asked whether the contractor had put in a sub-
stantial claim for the loss which he had suffered due to collapse of
span, the witness stated that “the contractor has said that he has lost
considerably on this. I don’t think he has yet put in a proper claim.”
The Chief Engineer, West Bengal, added that recently the contractor
had submitted an application to the Executive Engineer.

1.16. In reply to a question, the witness stated that it was not pos-
sible in November, 1962 to complete the bridge by August, 1963 under
the normal contract. They also did not give steel and foreign ex-
change to the contractor. As regards justification for paying Rs. 3.5
lakhs, the witness stated that the contractor gave his estimates for
the extra eost. It was examined and Rs. 3.5 lakhs was accepted by
them. The witness added that unless they had paid Rs. 3.5 lakhs,
the contractor would not have erected those additional centerings and

if those additional centerings had not been erected the bridge would
not have been completed.

1.17. In reply to another question, the Secretary of the Depart-
ment stated that it was Governments’ intention to examine very care-
fully the legal aspects of the case. The rights of Government and
the liabilities of the Contractor would be very carefully scrutinised
in consultation with the Law Ministry. If necessary, they would
even take the solicitor-General’s Opinion. And in the light of the
report which would be submitted by the Expert (Technical). Com-
mittee which was set up to find out the reasons for this collapse, they
would invoke the penalty clauses which were contained both in the
original contract as well as in the supplementary agreement. They
would recover whatever was due to them.

1.18. The Chief Engineer had told him that if the first collapse
had not taken place for 24 hours, the project would have been ready
for all purposes by August, 1963.

1.19. In reply to a question, the Director General (Road Deve-
lopment) admitted that the Executive Engineer had written letters
expressing dissatisfaction on the progress of construction of the
bridge before the collapse. The Executive Engineer, knowing that
flood was coming, was very much upset. The Executive Engineer
wanted to push the work through as fast as possible and pressed
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the contractor to accelerate it to the maximum extent possible.
‘The witness added that “he made demands which were altogether
impossible to fulfil” In reply to another question, the witness
stated that the Executive Engineer had not pointed out defects in
the construction of this bridge. He was complaining about the
progress, lack of labour, lack of more equipment and things like
that.

1.20. The Committee pointed out that the supplementary agree-
ment for the payment of additional premium of Rs. 3.5 lakhs pro-
vided that the payment of this amount would not be subject to the
completion of work by the due date i.e. 31st August, 1963, but would
be made irrecoverably; provided that the contractor made a sincere
endeavour to meet the target date and that no charge of incompetence
or malafides could be attributed to him. The Committee desired
to know why such an unusual and vague clause was included in
the contract and what was the justification for incurring the extra
expenditure of Rs. 3.5 lakhs, since even with this additional pay-
ment, completion of work by the target date was not guaranteed.
The witness stated that the contractor was no doubt promised to be
paid Rs. 3.5 lakhs but there was another clause regarding paying
penalty on non-completion of the bridge. Rs. 3.5 lakhs was really
the cost of the work that he would do in erecting the temporary
stage in the second span and also in bringing the launching truss
etc. And, therefore, this amount had to be paid. The Committee
desired that a comprehensive note on this para might be furnished.
The note has been received and is at Appendix I.

1.21. The Committee are perturbed to find that due to delays on
the part of the Department, Government had to pay an extra amount
of Rs. 3.5 lakhs to the contractor to compensate him for completion
of the bridge by August, 1963. They regret to note that in spite of
this extra payment which was made to enable the contractor to com-
plete the bridge in time, the due date of completion viz., August, 1963
could not be adhered to and the Construction of the bridge was com-
pleted only in July, 1966.

1.22. The Committee are also not happy with the wordings of
.the -supplementary agreement entered into with the contractor.
They are surprised that an unusual and vague clause regarding
complétion of the work was included in the supplementary agree-

. ment with the result that the completion of the bridge by the target
. slate was net guaranteed even after a definite commitment to an addi-
- tional payment of Rs. 3.50 lakhs.
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.. 1.23. The Committee would like to be informed of the penalty

imposed/or compensation claimed from the contractor for delay im
completion of work.

Non-recovery of liquidated damages—para 73, pages 82-83:

1.24. According to the terms of a contract entered into with &
foreign firm in November, 1960 for the manufacture and supply of
a dredger for the Kandla Port (cost Rs: 69.74 lakhs), the construction
of the vessel was to be completed by June, 1962 and was to be de-
livered at Kandla by July, 1962

1.25. The dredger was, however, delivered at Kandla only in
September, 1963. Although it had been agreed through correspond-
ence (prior to the finalisation of the agreement) between the firm and
the Government that recovery would be effected from the contract
price towards liquidated damages at 1|8 per cent per week for delay
in the delivery of the dredger at Kandla beyond the stipulated date,
no such condition was incorporated in the final agreement. The
Ministry of Law held (September, 1963) that the provisions in the
correspondence exchanged before the execution of the contract can-
not prevail on the contract provisions.

1.26. + The defective agreement resulted in non-recovery of liqui-

dated damages amounting to Rs. 5.14 lakhs for delay in the delivery
of the dredger.

1.27. The Committee desired to know whether any responsibility
had been fixed for the defective wording of the contract and whether
any legal advice was obtained before finalising the terms of the
formal contract. The Secretary, Deptt. of Transport, stated that as
far as the Transport Ministry was concerned. they took all possible
precautions for inclusion of the penalty clause when the contract was
drafted. Secondly, discussions were started with the foreign firm
and in the negotiations with the firm, they stipulated the penalty
clause and in the exchange of letters this was confirmed by the
firm. Thirdly, they sent this clause for examination to the Technical
consultants. They examined it and then they sent it to the Minis-
try of Law for their scrutiny. The Law Ministry also examined #t
and what emerged as a result of this scrutiny was the document which
was then signed by the Transport Ministry. Whatever possible
precautions had to be taken were taken as far as the Transport
Ministry was concerned. He added that they had not lost anything
by the omission of that clause.



. 1.28. In reply to a question, the witness stated that in the con-
tract which was signed, there was some error or omission. Clause 12
which related to the delivery of the vessel at Kandla was not men-
tioned. Penalty clause 20 should have been recited in the contract.
It only spoke about clause 10 and not clause 12.

1.29. The Committee enquired the stage at which the mistake
was committed. The witness stated that the Technical Consultants
did not make a mention of this. He added that the Law Ministry
vetted the contract and in the contract, unfortunately this omission
was not noticed. It was a typographical mistake. Clause 20 ref-
erred to both the deliveries-delivery of the vessel in Kandla and ac-
ceptance of the vessel on trial. Those two stipulations were clear-
ly mentioned. In the penalty clause they had merely to recite
clauses 10 and 12. Instead of clauses 10 and 12, only clause 10 had
been recited.

1.30. The Solicitor, Ministry of Law, stated that in the original
draft, there was clause 10 which provided for damages for delay in
construction as well as for delay in delivery of the vessel. Clause 10
was divided into parts and when that draft was sent by the Transport
Ministry to the consultants, the consultants there re-arranged that
clause. They divided that clause 10 into clauses 10, 11 12, 13 and
14. When they re-drafted clause 20, they put the damages for
delay in construction and delay in delivery. The witness added
that he thought that clause 10 was the original clause which dealt
with both types of deliveries. When they sub-divided clause 10 into
clauses 10, 11, 12 and 13, probably, the other clause was lost sight of
by them.

1.31. In reply to another question, the witness stated that in the
ariginal draft damages both for delay in construction and delivery
were mentioned. The heading also mentioned damages for delay in
construction and delivery only as mentioned in clause 10 and not
clause 12. That omission was not noticed either by the Transport
Ministry or the Law Ministry.

132 Asked why it took 13 months for the dredger to reach.
Kandla from Holland, the Chief Engineer, Kandla Port, stated that
the dredger was ready in the shipyards in Holland and it left
Holland on 6th June, 1962. It arrived in Bombay on 9th July and
then after inspection at the dock, it came to Kandla on 20th July,
1962. There the contractor had to give. trials... By 4th August all
trials were completed .except one which was the central suction pipe
trial. This trial cquld not be completed because one gutter which



weighed 5-6 tons had to be removed before the track could be put on
the suction pipe for the trial. Inspite of 34 days efforts, the con-
tractors could not remove it. The dredger was opened up and was
re-assembled with the gutter section by the end of August and the
beginning of September. It was ready for the trial which was com-
pleted the next day. There was some defect in the piston rods.
Modifications were carried out to the dredger and in‘that a lot of
time was taken. The dredger was accepted on 11th September, 1963.

1.33. The Secretary of the Department added that the accept-
ance was delayed on account of the fact that the firm itself had to
carry out the necessary repairs and refits in order to make it accept-
able according to specifications. Therefore, it took all this time.
When it was found in a fit condition, they accepted it. The firm
had to spend as much as Rs. 8-9 lakhs to set the dredger right.

1.34. In reply to a question, the witness stated that the dredger
was working satisfactorily and its maintenance cost was normal.

1.35. The Committee pointed out that according to the audit para
the Law Ministry was of the view that it was the contract that pre-
vailed and not the correspondance. The effect of it was that liqui-
dated damages amounting to Rs. 5-14 lakhs were not realisable. The
Secretary of the Department stated that on a point which was pure-
ly a legal point, they would certainly abide by the decision of the
Law Ministry. Here the opinions of the Transport and Law Minist-
ries were somewhat different. The contract specifically recited that
the correspondence was part of the contract, clauses 1 and 2 mention-
ed the documents which would be part of the contract and these in-
cluded the exchange of letters. He added that in the supplementary
agreement which was signed on 2nd February, 1963, they specifically
mentioned that they had a right to liquidated damages and the firm
had confirmed it. The firm was bound by it.

1.36. In reply to a question, the Solicitor, Ministry of Law stated
that when this matter was considered about 3 years ago, the officer
concerned appeared to have considered only the conditions of the
¢ontract because in his opinion he only mentioned conditions—the
conditions on the basis of which the contract was supposed to be
complete and any prior correspondence to that would not form part
of the contract. He did not appear to have considered the corres-
pondence. Of course, he referred to the correspondence but he ref-
erred to it in' a manner as if it did'not form part of the contract.
He came to the conclusion that because all the correspondence was
prior to the contract and not part of the contract and therefore,
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could not be considered. The Solicitor, Ministry of Law further
stated that the opinion should have been given by the Ministry of
Law on the whole contract. He added personally he felt that the
claim for damage would lie and that he would reconsider it.

. 1.37. In reply to another question, the Secretary Department of
Transport stated that on the basis of the contract, they had written
a leter to the firm invoking Article I etc. to pay them liquidated

damage,

1.38. The Committee regret to note that there was some error or
omission in the contract in as much as in the penalty clause, clause
12 which related to the delivery of the vessel at Kandla was not men-
tioned. They would like the Administrative Ministries as well as
the Ministry of Law to take suitable steps to ensure that such lapses
in respect of legal documents do not occur in future. They are, how-
ever, glad to be assured in evidence that this omission will not stand
in the way of recovery of liquidated damages from the firm. The
Committee will like to be informed of the final position of recovery
in due course,

1.39. The Committee also regret to note that the Ministry of Law
1id not examine the document (viz. agreement) as a whole and gave
~n opinion which was not based on the complete examination of the
whole contract. Even the witness from the Ministry of Law admit-
ted in evidence that personally he thought that a claim for damage
would lie in this case and promised to reconsider the case. The
Committee desire that the Ministry of Law should be more careful in
examining the document and in giving. their considered opinion.

BorbErR RoAbps ORGANISATION

Deficiencies in spare parts of vehicles and equipment purchased from
abroad—para 83, pages 93-94.

1.40. Spare parts of vehicles and equipment purchased from a
foreign country were despatched from the port of landing to a Base
Depot under the Border Roads Organisation during the period Sep-
tember, 1960 to September, 1961. The stores, on arrival at the desti-.
riation, were handled by different units in succession till September,
1961 when the Stores Section of a Base Workshop took over the res-
ponsibility for the receipt and accounting of the stores.

1.41. In October, 1961, a Board of Officers was convened to under-
take a complete check of all the stores purchased from abroad and to
determine the extent and value of deficiencies, if any. The Board
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“which assembled in November, 1961 and February, 1962, tentatively
eame to the conclusion that losses of spare parts to the extent of
'Rs. 3 lakhs had taken place and that this could be attributed to un-
satisfactory administration. The Board also noticed that packages of
stores were kept lying unopened for 4 to 6 months and that no uni-

form procedure had been adopted by the units to take the stores on
eharge.

1.42. A complete check of the receipts with the relevant invoices/
packing accounts and issue vouchers carried out by the Board which
finalised its proceedings in August, 1964 revealed that the value of

deficiencies of spare parts purchased from abroad was Rs. 3.41 lakhs
as indicated below:—

-

Value (in
lakhs of Remarks
rupees)
(i) Losses in transit - - 0.86 Claims for this amount were prefer-

rcd against the Railways but were
rejected being time-barred.

(ii) Short receipts from sup-
pliers. - . * 1'54 No information is available as to
whether the suppliers were appro-
ached to make good the d:ficien-
cies.

(iii) Deficiencies in stock
(i.c. after receipt of
stores at the dsostina-
tion) . . . 1.0I

ToTAL - 3.41

1.43. The responsibility for the above deficiencies in/losses of
spare parts, which are awaiting regularisation, is yet to be fixed
(September, 1965).

144, The Committee desired to know whether any responsibility
had been fixed for deficiencies in and the losses of spare parts; and
why no satisfactory arrangements could be made earlier than Sep-
tember, 1961 for the receipt, custody and accounting of stores; and
whether any action had been taken for recovery of amount for short-
receipt with the suppliers. The Secretary, Ministry of Defence, stat-
ed that with regard to the first question, no responsibility had been
fixed. Certain enquiries were being held and the case relating to

090 (Ail) LS—2.
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officers concerned had been sent to the GOC-in-C Army Command
under whose jurisdiction the whole matter rested for taking discip-
linary action against the persons concerned. With regard to the
second question, the witness stated that arrangements were not
'made as the magnitude of the task was not realised at that time and
this was one of the points for fixing responsibility. Regarding the
third question, the witness stated that no information was available -

as to whether the suppliers were approached to make good the
deficiencies.

1.45. The witness added that the suppliers had at no time the
custody of the supplies. The supplies came from abroad. They
were unloaded at Calcutta docks and from there without the pack-
ages being opened, they were despatched direct by train to destina-
tion. Loss had been found when at the destination certain packages
were not received at all and certain others were received in open and
broken condition. There was no means to ascertain the losses suffer-
ed on account of receipt of open and broken packages or non-
receipt of packages at all from the despatcher. Sometime in July,
1962, the Chief Engineer made a reference to the suppliers saying that

.there was a certain shortage. The supplier wrote back to them and
asked for certain details so that they could take up the matter with
their manufacturers abroad- The Chief Engineer sent a reply to
the suppliers saying that no information was available.

146. The Committee enquired why no claim was preferred to
the Railways for the whole amount. The witness stated that claims
~eecm to have been preferred on 24th March, 1962, with regard to
those packages where open delivery was taken or packages which
were not at all delivered.

1.47. On being asked whether any assessment of the loss was
made, the witness stated the loss was not assessed at that particular
time. Subsequently, a Board of Officers assessed the loss with re-
gard to these packages which were lost.

148. In reply to a question, the witness stated that on the 4th
October, 1961, an order was issued for the first court of enquiry to
examine the whole matter about losses suffered. This court of en-
quiry gave the report sometime in March, 1962. The Director
General, Border Roads, examined this report and sent it to the Sectt.
of the Boarder Roads Development Board., which was not satisfied
‘with this report and certain questions were raised with regard to
- the contents of this report. The Director General, Border Roads,
then explained that the report was contradictory and unsatisfactory
in many respects. The second Board of Enquiry was convened to
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go into the whole matter in November, 1863. This Board also stated
that there were losses and they reassessed the same. They also
stated that it was not possible to pin-point the responsibility for these
losses on any single individual. Thereafter, the Ministry of Defence
asked the Controller of Defence Accounts, Patna, to carry out an
audit and give a certificate about the losses requiring write off. The
verdict of the Controller of Defence Accounts about the final loss
came to them in January, 1966.

149. In reply to a question, the witness stated that a group of
officials was responsible for handling this matter. Broadly speak-
ing the arrangements were inadequate. They did not take steps to
point out in time that the arrangements were inadequate. He added
that even the invoices that were signed were lying in some drawers
without being forwarded.

1.50. The Director General, Border Roads, added that there was
a third court of enquiry which was specially convened in March,
1965, to go into the disciplinary aspect of the case. They came to the
conclusion that the officers commanding two units who had receiv-
ed the stores earlier were responsible. The court of the enquiry
proceedings together with the recommendations of D.G., Border
Roads and the recommendations of the Chief Engineer were with
the G.O.C.-in-C, Eastern Command for taking necessary action
against those two officers. From a subsequent note, the Committee
learn that one of the officers involved in this case had retired in
August, 1964 and the other was under suspension in connection with
another case. Displeasure of Government have also been conveyed
in May, 1966 to the members of the First Board who gave an unreli-
able Report.

1.51. The Commitiee régret to note that no satisfactory arrange-
ments were made by the Border Roads Organisation for the receipt,
custody and accounting of spare parts of vehicles and equipment
purchased from a foreign country. On the other hand, there was
laxity and carelessness on the part of the staff. They are also sux-
prised to find that information asked for by the suppliers for taking
up the question of shortages with the main suppliers was not avail-
able with the Border Roads Organisation.

152. The Committee feel that during the period of 5 years since
this loss of Rs. 3.52 lakhs took place, not serious effort had beea
‘made to make good this loss or o Obtain compensation.
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1.53. The Committee trust that the Border Roads Organisation
would take suitable steps to check recurrence of such losses in future
and to improve the procedure regarding handling of receipt of stores.

Avoidable erpenditu.re due to retention of a unit—Para 84—Page 94.

1.54. A Workshop and Park Company was raised in April, 1963
for being utilised in a particular project. When the movement
order was issued in October, 1963, the project authorities intimated
that the company was no longer required by them. But, instead of
disbanding this company, it was retained at the raising centre to
assist it in its store holding duties. The company with 74 person-
nel on its strength, was finally disbanded in December, 1964 after
absorbing 9 of them in a newly formed depot that replaced the exist-
ing raising centre. During the period October, 1963 to December,
1964, an expenditure of Rs. 1.22 lakhs was incurred on pay a.nd allow-
ances which was largely avoidable.

1.55. The personnel of the company who were retained in the
eentre continued to enjoy the concession of free rations and accom-
modation from October, 1963 though such concessions are not admis-
sible to personnel employed in the centre itself. The extra expen-
diture on rations during the period from October, 1963 to December,
1964 amounted to about Rs. 38,600.

1.56. The Committee desired to know why the unit was not dis-
banded in October, 1963, when the project authorities intimated that
it was not required and whether sanction of the competent authority
was obtained before utilising this unit for store holding duties. The
Secretary, Ministry of Defence, stated that no such sanction was
obtained. The witness explained certain facts about this case. The
Board fixed the programme for the Border Roads Organisation from
time to time on the basis of the anticipated workload. The Direc-
tor General had to organise his various task forces. His various task
forces were broadly organised till now on the pattern of Army Orga-
nisation, containing various units. Since the raising of the units and
training them and posting them to these units took some time, there
was always a time lag between the dates on which the decisions were
taken to raise these units and the actual occasion when they were
deployed for actual work. It was found not merely in this case but in
few other cases also that the deployment pattern of the manpower
recruited was neither the most economical nor efficient. They were
trying to find ways and means by which this time lag could be re-
duced.
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1.57. As regards non-disbanding of the unit in October, 1963, the
witness stated that a unit could not be disbanded at short notice.
They could not be discharged before the completion of three years.
He added that various adjustments could be made. There was a
certain flexibility.

1.58. The Director General Border Roads stated that a particular
Centre was converted into a Depot and a small number of personnel
from this unit were absorbed in the new establishment of the Depot.

1.59. The Committee regret that an avoidable expenditure of about
Bs. 1.22 lakhs was incurred on pay and allowances of the staff during
the period October, 1963 to December, 1964 before disbanding the
Park Company. :

1.60. During evidence it was stated that the development pattern
of the manpower recruited in such cases was not the most economi-
cal or efficient way of doing it and they were trying to find ways
and means by which the time lag could be reduced. There had been
in this case not a proper balance between the programme of recruit-
ment and the programme of employment and they had initiated vari-
ous measures to remedy this state of affairs and they could be watch-
ing whether these measures would achieve results.

1.61. The Committee trust that with the measures adopted by the
Border Roads Organisation there would not be any infructuous ex-
penditure in future in such cases and the deployment pattern of the
.manpower would be more realistic and economical.

Non-utilisation of plant, para 86, page 95:

1.62. To meet the requirements of the Border Roads Organisation
two sets of imported Asphalt machines (mixtures and finishers)
costing Rs. 5.64 lakhs were received between September, 1961 and
Fcbruary, 1962. One machine has been used for a period of 535
hours in about five months during 1963, while the second machine
has not been put to any use. Both the machines are at present lying
idle (January, 1966).

1.63. The Committee enquired the basis on which the requirement
of two machines was worked out; whether the road construction
programme had been adversely affected by the non-utilisation of
these machines; and the present position regarding utilisation of the
plants. The Secretary, Ministry of Defence, stated that in 1960 a
team of officers was sent from this country to U.S.S.R. and to Japan
to make a local investigation as to the various types of plant avail-
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able for mechanisation of road construction to the maximum extent
possible and to purchase within limits the equipment that they con-
sidered necessary. Before they went abroad, they had made a broad
list of the type of equipment they were likely to be in need of and
that list had been broadly approved by B.R.D.B. The B.R.D.B. it-
self had been established in April, 1960 and the programme of work
to be undertaken and the future way in which the Board would
develop was in a state of flux. The whole idea was that it was essen-
tial to have a big programme of road construction in the Himalaya
where it was extremely difficult to get adequate manpower and at
the same time it posed many engineering problems. They did not
have enough accurate knowledge of the type of problems which -
they were going to face but with the knowledge they had, they made
the best estimate of the type of equipment they were likely to need.
They went and inspected the equipment on the spot and purchased
some. Even with regard to Asphalt plants there was an authority
to purchase upto 8. But when they saw the plants, they ordered only
for two so that they could gain experience and in light of that ex-
~ perience they should decide to go in for more. This caution was
fully justified by what happened afterwards. When those officers
saw this plant in Japan they were confident of handling it but when
the plant arrived and when they started assembling they found they
did not have the capacity even to assemble it. They approached the
manufacturer and asked for an engineer. The manufacturers were
good enough to send an engineer without any cost to them. He ar-
rived in October, 1962 here and could erect the plant that was in
the Western Sector. But because of the events happening at that
time in the Eastern Sector, he was not willing to go there and they
too were not willing to send him here. The plant that was erected
in the Western sector, had not been used even till that day for roads.
By December, 1962 another urgent demand arose for work on an air-
field in Western Sector and this plant was used there extensively.
It was one of the circumstances that though the plant was brought
for one purpose it became handy for some other purpose.

1.64. The witness added that the second plant that was in Eastern
. Sector could not be erected by the officers and they also did not
have any use for this plant. That had been erected now in Western
Sector and it had also been tried out. It had not yet been used on
road construction. He added that he himself went and inspected
this plant the other day. His view was that this plant could be
effectively used in a short radious of space where extensive work
had got to be done. Though the DGBR was not fully in agreement
with it. The Asphalt mix that this plant could take out could be
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used within a distance of 10, 12 miles and beyond that the mix cools
and then it would not be useful for the construction of road. Further
the plant was also not mobile and it had to be dismantled and trans-
ported to the other place and then erected there and it would take
. quite a lot of time,

1.65. The Committee enquired the cost of each plant. The witness
replied that Rs. 5-64 lakhs was for both the plants together. The
value of work done by one plant by using it in an Airfield in Western
Sector was approximately Rs. 109 lakhs. At present there was a
proposal to improve a road in one Sector to a much higher specifi-
cation in order to negotiate or stand considerable heavy traffic. The
DGBR had opined that with the upgrading of the specifications this
machinery would be absolutely necessary for improving this road
at a rapid pace. This point was still under examination as to whe-
ther it could be effectively done. A final decision might be taken
within a month.

1.66. In reply to a question, the witness stated that due to non-
utilisation of these machines the work had not suffered. If this
machine was a mobile one or if there was considerable work within
a small area, it would be effectively used. The witness admitted that
the original assessment to buy 8 of such machines was on the high
side as these were not mobile, and it was a miscalculation to that
effect.

1.67. The Committee pointed out that the experts should have seen
the demonstration of the machines. As they were experts they
should have known whether the Asphalt cooled down over a wider

span of work or not. The witness agreed with the observation of
the Committee.

1.68. The Committee are perturbed to find that two sets of Asphalt
machines which were purchased from Japan at the cost of Rs. 5.64
lakhs remained mostly unutilised and are still lying idle. They re-
gret to find that these machines could not serve the purpose for
which these were purchased (construction of roads in Himalayas).

They would like to be informed of the final dec:snon to effectively
utilise the machinery.

1.69, The Committee would like to know the circumstances under
which this work of making purchases of machines was entrusted to
such persons who did not have enough knowledge of these machines
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and the problems with which they were confrented with and why
demonsiration of the machines was not insisted upon before hand.

1.70. The Committee understand from Audit that on opening the
packages, it was found that there were some deficiencies and after
ascertaining that they were mnot available from indigenous sources,
orders were placed far the missing components from Japan. These
are staied to have since been received and the machines tested in
March/September, 1965.

1.71. The Committee desire that the circumstances under which
some parts were found deficient should be investigated and respon-
sibility fixed for the missing components. They should be iniormed
of the result of investigation.

Default in repayment of loan—para 138, pages 163-164.

1.72. In February, 1962 Government sanctioned a loan of
Rs. 3,39,500 to the Delhi Educated Persons’ Co-operative Transport
Society, Ltd., Delhi (having Government nominees on its Board of
Directors), through the Delhi Administration, for the purchase of
10 Mercedes Benz trucks. The loan was recoverable in five annual
instalments, commencing from March, 1963 together with interest at
the rate of 44 per cent. (8 pger cent. in case of default in repayment
of any instalment). The full amount of the loan was paid on 2 March,
1962 without obtaining any security from the Society or executing
a formal deed incorporating the terms and conditions of the loan as
required under the loan sanction. The trucks purchased out of the
loan were also not got mortgaged to Government. 35 members (out
of 50) of the Society had not paid completely their share of Rs. 1.000
each towards its share capital.

1.73. The first instalment of Rs. 67,900 towards repaymenti of the
loan fell due in March, 1963, but the Delhi Administration did not
take any action for its recovery. Due to heavy losses 1o clling from
leakage of revenue and irresponsible acts on the part of some of its
members, the Delhi Administration decided to liquidate the Society
on 27 November, 1963, by which time the Society had not paid any
instalment of loan or interest. Oui of the amouni of Rs. 2,49,076,
realised by the liquidator from the sale of trucks, a sum of
Rs. 2,30,000 was paid to Government (Rs. 2 lakhs in June, 1965 and
Rs. 30,000 in January, 1966). The balance amount of loan of
Rs, 1,09500 and interest of Rs. 81,480 (at the rate of 8 per cent due
;gtco 1 March, 1965) are still (January, 1966) outstanding against the

iety.
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1.74. The Manager of the Society, (a non-gazetted official working
on deputation with the Society from the Delhi Administration with
effect from 1 October, 1961) was suspended from service with effect
from 9 September, 1964 on charges of failure to exercise supervision
over the working of the Society, misappropriation of its large funds
and other financial irregularities.

1.75. The Ministry have intimated to Audit in January, 1966 that
on investigations conducted by the Police, they did not find suffi-
cient evidence to proceed against the Manager or any other member
of the Society.

1.76. The Committee desired to know whether the Ministry had
investigated the matter as recommended by P.A.C. in paras 11.9 and
11.10 of their 54th Report, Vol. I (Third Lok Sabha) and if so, what
were their findings and what were the prospects of the recovery of
balance of loan amount and the interest. The Secretary, Department
of Transport, stated that an enquiry had been made by the Delhi
Administration. The investigation had been entrusted to the Auditors
of the Cooperative Department. They had detected six embezzle-
ment cases and all these cases had been reported to the police for
prosecution. The total amount involved in these six cases was
Rs. 9,000. The witness added that an amount of Rs. 3.39 lakhs was
given as loan. Recovery had been made to the extent of Rs. 2.30
lakhs. A sum of Rs. 97,000 would be adjusted from the liability of
the members who had been traced.

1.77. In reply to a question, the witness stated that firstly, it was
a question of bringing the defaulters to book. Secondly, they had
been able to locate the members of the society who had run away.
They had been able to find out 22 out of 35 members. He assured
that proceedings would be initiated and recovery will be made.

1.78. The Committee are unhappy to note that the Delhi Admin-
istration has been able to locate only 22 members of the Delhi Edu-
cated Persons’ Co-operative Transport Society Limited, out of 33
members and proceedings had not yet been initiated against them.
They desire that action should be taken without further delay to re-
cover Government dues from the Society.

1.79. The Committee enquired whether there were some Govern-
ment nominees also on the Board. The representative of the Delhi
Administration stated that the General Manager of the Society was
a_Government servant. The Secretary, Department of Transport,
stated that the Chairman was an official from the Department of
Transport. In reply to a question, the representative of the Delhi
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Administration stated that Director of Transport, Registrar of Co-
operative Society and one more were on the Board.

~ 1.80. On being asked why proceedings were not taken against
Government nominees, the witness stated that Government nominees
who were on the Board were to persuade the persons concerned to
pay back. Since it was not possible to do that, it was decided to
take action against persons concerned.

1.81. In reply to a question, the witness stated that out of 50
members, 15 members had paid their share of Rs. 1,000 each. 35 of
them had not paid full share. No personal guarantee was taken from
members., He added that the society trucks were to be mortgaged
to the Government. Unfortunately some how or the other the mort-
gage deed was not signed.

1.82. The Committee enquired whether the State Motor Transport
Controller, who was the Chairman of the society, brought to the
notice of the Government any deficiency in the running of this Co-
operative society. The witness stated that this was an experiment
and efforts were made to make it succeed. So, the Director of Trans-
port was more concerned with ameliorating the situation rather than
taking action. He added that “only when we were driven to the

extreme, we took this action. It is difficult to reconstruct anything
else from the files.”

1.83. The Secretary, Department of Transport added that “we gave
the loan in 1962. In 1963, the company went into liquidation. In
this very short period the members of the society went on with great
speed and rapidity that they destroyed the society itself.”

1.84. The Committee pointed out that if Government Directors
could not exercise any financial control on the working of the society,
it was no use merely putting Government Directors there. The
witness stated that it was unfortunate that the General Manager who
was a Government servant himself got emboriled, in this virus of
corruption. In reply to a question, the witness added that in that

short period there were three different chairmen and they could
not perhaps do much,

1.85. Asked whether any inquiry was conducted, the representa-
tive of the Delhi Administration stated that the investigation was
conducted by the Auditors of the Co-operative Department. The
liquidator also made an inquiry. No inquiry was however conducted

to find why Government nominees could not' safeguard the public’
interest.
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1.86. At the instance-of the Committee, the Ministry have fur-
nished a copy of the investigation made by the Auditors in this case.

1.87. The Committee enquired how a stenographer was consider-
ed to be competent to work as the Manager of the society, when
under the scheme the post was required to be filled in by a State
Civil Service Officer. The representative of the Delhi Administra-
tion stated that the post was created in a lower ccale than P.C.S,,
therefore a P.C.S. officer could not be appointed. The reason for
the lower scale was that Government was of the opinion that the
post carried ministerial responsibility and a higher scale was not
justified for this post.

1.88. The Committee asked who appointed this stenographer as
Manager of the society. The witness stated that it was very diffi-
cult to say. He added that as no direct recruitment was to be made,
so it was not advertised. The first incumbent was a PCS officer.
After his reversion, the stenographer was appointed. The Commit-
tee pointed out that when the pilot scheme required that the Mana-
ger would be a State Civil Service Officer and that he would be re-
quired to undergo a course of training in all branches of road trans-
port operations for a period of six months and would also be trained
in co-operative principles, why relaxation was made and this steno-
grapher selected. The witness stated that this stenographer had a
good dossier before his appointment as Manager of the Society.

1.89. In reply to a question, the witness stated that six prosecu-
tions had been launched against the members of the society for
embezzlement. The Secretary, Department of Transport added that
the matter was also reported to the police. Police investigated it for
2% years and found there was no justification for prosecuting any one
for cheating.

1.90. The Committee are surprised to note that the post of the
manager of the Cooperative Society was filled by a stenographer in-
stead of by a State Civil Service officer. The Committee desire that
the Ministry should look into the case of appointment of the steno-
grapher to the post of Manager to find out if he was considered com-
petent enough to hold the job and also how far he was responsible
for the ultimate fate of the society.

1.91. The Committee also regret to note that Government nomi-
nees on the management Board of the Society could not safeguard
financial interest of Government in this case. They desire that fail-
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ure of Government nominees 'to safeguard Government’s financial
interest should also be looked into in this case.

Loss due to negligent storage—Appendix I—Item I, pages 197-198.

1.92. About 62 tons of road paints (22 tons purchased in 1955-56
and 40 tons received from a division in 1961-62) was stored by the
Howrah Construction Division, for constructing approaches to the
Rupnarayan bridge on National Highway No. 6. Out of this about
57 tons (valued Rs. 21,000) became wholly unserviceable as the pain®¥
got badly mixed with mire after leaking through the drums which
corroded by the saline water of the river that regularly flooded the
sunken site on the bank where the drums were stored.

1.93. The survey report for write off of the stores was prepared im
April, 1962 but the loss has not so far been written off, nor the res-

ponsibility fixed therefor (July, 1965).

1.94. The case was reported by Audit to the Ministry on 15th Sep-
tember, 1965; their remarks are still awaited (January, 1966).

1.95. With regard to the loss, the representative of the Department
of Transport stated that the West Bengal Government had reported
that the loss had been assessed correctly after salvaging and the
total loss was now 10 tons. The West Bengal Government had said
that this loss might be considered as condonable and no one might
be held responsible. The Ministry had not agreed with it. They
had pointed out that in any case 57 tonz of bitumen were allowed to
leak. They had asked the West Bengal Government to hold enquiry
and find out who was responsible,

1.96. 'The Committee may be apprised of the outcome of the en-
quiry,

Extra Expenditure—Appendix I, Item 2—Page 198.

1.97. The construction of a bridge across river Par in Mile No.
145 on National Highway No. 8 was executed by the State P.W.D. on
bekalf of the Central Government on agency basis. The work was
let out on a lump sum contract in February, 1959 for Rs. 6.40 lakhs
. and completed in March, 1962. One of the wing walls of the bridge
collapsed in September, 1963. This damaged wing wall was repaired
and the other wing walls strengthened at a total cost of Rs. 12,800.
The damage was attributed (September, 1963) by the Superintend-
ing Engineer (Designs) to the inadequacy of the sections of the wing



wallg and to non-provision of weep holes; according to the Execu-
tive Engineer (January, 1965) the design of the wing wall was not
submitted by the contractor for approval as per contract before the
work was started. Failure to get the approval of the design of the
wing walls before starting the work resulted in an extra expenditure
of Rs. 12,800. Responsibility for this failure was not fixed (March,
1965).

1.98. The case was reported by Audit to the Ministry (in October,
1965) ; their remarks are awaited (Deccember, 1965).

1.99. The Committee desired to know why no reply had been sent
to Audit although the case was reported to them as far back as Octo-
ber, 1965 and whether Government had examined this case ard fixed
responsibility for the extra expenditure. The witness regretted that
there was delay in making the final report. The State Government
sent the final reply on 2nd March, 1966. Prior to this they are get-
‘ting replies which were more or less contradicting the previous
replies. They got the first information from Gujarat State, who
carried out the works, that due to some technical defect the wall had
_eollapsed. In the second reply the State Government said that soil
conditions were defective and it failed. In the last reply, it was said
that rubble filling was not carried out behind the wing-walls, with
the result that more pressure came on the wing-walls and it collaps-
ed. The State Government had made such contradictory statements.
They wrote back saying this was a case where a proper enquiry had
to be made from those responsible and responsibility fixed. The
witness added that they did not know what was the real fact. It
seemed that the last reply was correct. Out of 4 wing-walls, only
one collapsed and the others were standing. They had re-built the
collapsed wing-wall to the same section as original, but this time they
had provided rubble filling behind this new wing-walls as well as
behind the three old wing-walls. They would await the final result
of the investigation.

1.100. The Committee regret to note that the Depai-tment
failed to send their remarks to Audit, although this case was report-
ed to them in October, 1965..

1.101. They are surprised to find that the Gujarat State Govern-
ment furnished contradictory replies to the Department on the causes
of the collapse of one of the wing-walls of the bridge. The Commit-
tee would like to be informed of the action taken on the basis of the
enquiry initiated into this case.



CHAPTER 11
MINISTRY OF WORKS, HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
DIRECTORATE OF ESTATES

Residential accommodation—Page 83, para 74:

During the period from January, 1963 to February, 1965, 31 build-
ings with a living area of 67,911 sq. ft. involving a monthly compen-
sation of Rs. 27,316 were requisitioned by Government for their own
purposes—the average compensation being Rs. 40.20 per 100 sq. ft.
per month.

2.2. It was observed in 24 cases of allotment of Government-own-
ed residential accommodation to non-eligible parties, during April,
1963 to September, 1965, involving a living area of 40,017 sq. ft. that
the rent charged from the allottees ranged from Rs. 5 to Rs. 41.10 per
100 sq. ft. per month—the average rent charged in these cases being
Rs. 25.21 per 100 sq. ft. According to Audit, Government would
have saved payment of compensation of about Rs. 6,000 per month,
if these Government-owned houses had been utilised for their own
purposes, instead of allotting them to non-eligible parties.

2.3. With regard to allotment of Government houses to private
parties, the Secretary of the Ministry stated during evidence that
pursuant to the recommendation of the Public Accounts Committee
made in para 43 of their 34th Report (Third Lok Sabha), a decision
had since been taken that Government accommodation would not be
allotted to ineligible parties except in very special cases on merits.
Asked about the periods to which the 24 cases referred to in Audit
para pertained, the witness replied that out of these, in 8 cases allot-
ments were made in 1965. When it was pointed out by the Com-
mittee that some cases of allotments to private parties occurred even
after the presentation of their 34th Report, the witness stated that
their allotments were made in special circumstances on merits.

2.4. The witness informed the Committee that out of 24 houses,
four had been vacated. In 5 cases the period of allotment was only
~ upto 31st March, 1967 and it was expected that some of them would
fall vacant. As regards the remaining 15 houses there was no speci-
fled period of allotment. But a review was made every three/four

24



months and the file was put up to the Minister for orders whether a
date might be fixed for vacation of the houses. The Committee de-
sired to be furnished with a statement indicating the details of houses
allotted to non-eligible parties, living area; rent charged for 100 sq.
ft., date of allotment, name of allottee, special reason if any for
allotment, whether they had been vacated and if not, the likely date

of vacation. The Ministry have furnished a *statement to the Com-

mittee, ]

2.5. Referring to the procedure of allotment in the case of ineligi-
ble persons, the witness stated that so far as the Secretariat was con-
cerned, they refused allotment, whereafter it was the Minister’s
privilege to decide for or against the allotment. As regards the rent
charged from ineligible parties, the witness stated that in some cases
market rates had been charged; that rate until recently was twice the
rent under F.R. 45-B with 17} per cent departmental charges and some-
thing extra for garden etc. On his attention being drawn to different
rates viz. Rs. 75 and Rs. 143 being charged from two persons for the
same type of accommodation at Irwin Road, the witness stated that the
other allottee had since been charged Rs. 141. Earlier he had been
charged under 45-A and market rate was charged from him later
(from 1st January, 1966). Asked why the individual was first charg-
ed under F.R. 45-A, the witness stated “I can only point out that it was
the Minister’s order that he should then be charged at a certain rate
earlier; he himself changed this order and said that from 1st Janu-
ary, 1966, he should be charged market rent like all other ineligible
persons.” Asked about the circumstances leading to the change in
the Minister’s orders, the witness replied that it was at the time of
review of the old cases that these cases were also brought up before
the Minister for review in October-November, 1965. The Committee
pointed out that the present house was allotted to the individual in
September, 1965 and by that time the 34th Report of the Committee
had already been presented to the House. The witness stated that
although the recommendations of the Committee were in their hands
and they had accepted them in principle, the same had not been im-
plemented by- them. The witness added that new allotments were
made to old allottees on the understanding that their cases would
be reviewed in due course.

28. In reply to a question, the witness informed the Committee
that out of 24 cases of allotment of Government accommodation to
non-eligible persons at present, in 2 cases the rent was charged
under F.R. 45-A, in one case it was charged under F.R. 45-B and in

*  Noat vetted by Aucif.



the remaining 21 cases market rent under the old formula was
being charged, but allottees had been asked to pay the market rent
under the new formula as soon as it came into force.

2.7. Asked if there were any rules laying down the special cir-
cumstances, in which Government accommodation might be allotted
to ineligible persons, the witness replied in the negative. He added
that the number of houses allotted to ineligible persons formed a
very small fraction of total number of houses in the general pool,
ie. out of about 37,000 houses in general pool, the number allotted
to ineligible persons at present was roughly 304.

2.8. Referring to allotments made to the Press people, the wit-
ness stated that they were not eligible for houses from the general
pool, but it had been decided by Government to set apart a certain
number of houses in the Press Pool. The allotment of houses in
this pool was made on the recommendation of the Press Associa-
tion and in accordance with principles they decide to follow. But
they still remained ineligible in that sense. They were to be charg-
ed the same rent under F.R. 45-A as was the rent applicable to eligible
Government servants, on the ground that Press people were in
Delhi performing a function which was helpful to Government and
that private houses were not available and many of them could not
afford heavy rents for private accommodation.

2.9. The Committee drew attention to difference between the
ecompensation by way of rent payable for the requisitioned houses
and the rent recovered from private parties for allotting the Gov-
ernment-owned houses to them. .The witness stated that Gov-
ernment had to pay market rent for the houses taken on lease or
requisition, while their own formula of assessing the market rent
for Government-owned houses resulted in a much lower rate per
8q. ft. The witness added that in pursuance of the earlier recom-
mendation of the PAC they had decided on a new formula with
effect from 1st August, 1966 for determination of market rents for
Government accommodation. Non-eligible persons in occupation
of Government accommodation were being given a period of 2
monthg either to vacate the house or to start paying the market
rent. The witness added that under the new formula non-eligible
persons would be paying the market rent which would be almost
at the same level as the rent paid by the Government for the
leased or requisitioned houses.

2.10. In para 43 of their 34th Report (Third Lok Sabha), the Com-
mittee had recommended that in view of the continued shortage of
sccommodation for Government purposes, the practice of giving Gov-
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ernment accommmodation to private parties should be discontinued
and that in very special circumstances where such accommodation is
given purely as a temporary measure full market rent should invari-
ably be realised. The Committee were informed in September, 1965
(See Appendix II) that this recommendation had been accepted by
Government and suitable instructions had been issued. From the
statement of 24 houses allotted to non-eligible persons during the
period April, 1963 to September, 1965 the Committee find that in 3
cases rent is being charged under F.R. 45-A or 45-B instead of at the
market rate. It is not clear why market rent is not being charged in
these 3 cases even after the acceptance of the recommendations of
the Committee. The Committee desire tha. in all cases where Gov-
ernment houses have been allotted to non-eligible persons full market
rent should invariably be charged.

2.11. The Committee find from the statement furnished by the
Minisiry that out of 24 houses. mentioned in the audit para, 4 have
since been vacated, in one the alloiment has been made to an eligible
person and in 5 cases the period of allotment has been fixed upto 31st
March. 1967. The Committce were informed during evidence that
at present therc were 304 houses allotted .0 non-eligible persons.
They desire that in all these cases the period of allotment should be
fixed and extensions should be given only in special circumstances.

2.12. On his attention being drawn to the recommendation of the
Committer in their 34th Report (Third Lok Sabha) that private
housnz should not be requisitioned and given to private individuals,
the witness stated that they had not done that. He added that out
of 31 houses requisitioned during the particular period (January
1963 to Feh. 1965) 15 were for the U.S. Militarv Officers and 15 for
Government officials. When it was pointed out that some houses
were allotted to persons not entitled to them. the witness stated
that wherever the Department requisitioned and allotted houses to
ineligible persons, there were special reasons and the decision in
such cases, was taken at higher level. The Department was help-
less in the matter as a decision was taken at a higher level. In each
case special circumstances were mentioned and it was for the
Minister to accept those circumstances or to reject them. “I think
he rejects probably more than what he accepts. That is his privi-
lege” Asked whether it was within the knowledge of the Minister
that the Department had made the requisition. the witness replied
in the affirmative.

2.13. The witness informed the Committee that at present there
was a general pool of about 37,000 houses for Government servants

2090 (Aii) LS—3.
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and there was a shortage of about 65,000 to 75,000 houses. There
was a large number of officers without houses. The Department
had a special sanction from the Finance Ministry to requisition or
take on lease some houses for some Government officers for whom
accommodation of suitable types was not available with them.
These requisitions were made separately and the houses were
allotted to these officers. In the meantime, many requests giving
special reasons, on certain pleas were received, to which the De-
partment’s normal reply was that such applicants should make their
own arrangements and that Government houses could not be allotted
to non-eligible persons. But in certain cases. the Minister used the
discretion and made the allotment. The witness added that the
houses requisitioned for the US Military Officers and for Senior
Government Officers were higher type houses. The officers concerned
were entitled to types VII and VIII accommodation. The allotments
made to non-eligible persons were in the lower type of Government
owned houses. Even if the allotments had not been made to pri-
vate parties, it would not have been possible to allot the same
houses to the persons for whom the requisitions had been made.

2.14. In reply to a question, the witness stated that at present
there were 64 requisitioned houses and 83 leased houses (totalling
147 houses). Out of these 77 were allotted to eligible persons and
70 were in occupation of non-eligible persons. About the action
taken pursuant to the Public Accounts Committee’'s recommenda-
tion that speedy action should be taken to de-requisition private
houses allotted to private bodies. the witness stated that each case
had been examined and put up to the Minister for orders. Some of
the houses have also been de-requisitioned . . . The Committee
dgsired to be furnished with a statement showing:

1. Details of the houses buildings requisitioned.
2. Date on which it was requisitioned.

3. Whether the building is being utilised for the same pur-
pose for which it was so requisitioned or for any other

purpose.
4. Purpose for which it was requisitioned.

5. Rent fixed at the time of requisitioning the building.

6. Rent charged from the individual or the parties to whom
the building was allotted.

7. Reasons for utilising the building for purposes other than
the original purposes.

8. Steps taken, if any, for de-requisitioning the building.
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2.15. The information is still awaited.

2.16. The Ministry have, however, furnished to the Committee
a *statement showing details of 25 requisitioned houses and 11 leascd

houses which were in occupation of non-entitled persons, orgamsa-
tion etc. as on 26-9-1966.

2.17. In para 44 of their 34th Report (1964-65) the Committee had
observed (hat they consider it objectionable that private accommo-
dation is requisitioned by Government and then allotted to a private
body, and they had desired speedy action to bhe taken to de-requisi-
tion such buildings. The Commitiee were informed in May, 1966
(see Appendix III) that Government had accepted this recommen-
dation regarding de-requisitioning of the buildings occupied by pri-
vate bodies etc. The judgment of the Supreme Court dated the 29th
August, 1961 in appeal case of Triveni Kala Sangam is relevant where
the Court had held the view that the landlords were entitled to be
put in possession of the flats requisitioned by Government. if they
were not put to use for the purpose for which they were requisition-
ed. The Committee desire that vigorous steps should be taken to de-
requisition the houses which are no longer used hy the Government
for the public purpeses for which they were requisitioned. They
reiterate the observation made in para 71 of their 28th Report (Third
Lok Sabha) that it is the moral responsibility of Government to res-
tore such premises to their rightful owners. as soon as they are not
required for the public purpose.

Delay in recovery of trunk call charges—Page 83. para 75.

2.18. In respect of trunk calls booked by Ministers V.I.Ps. from
telephones installed in Kotah House Hostel, trunk call charges
amounting to Rs. 22,323 relating to the period from 1958-59 to
1962-63 initially paid by the Director of Estates, were pending re-
covery in November, 1965.

2.19. It was stated by the Director of Estates (November. 1965)
that complete details were available for Rs. 9.802 only out of
Rs. 22.323. and that recoveries to the extent of Rs. 7.519 were effect-
c¢d but that details of the same were also no! available and remain-
ed unlinked.

2.20. The Committee enquired about (i) the difficulty in realis-
ing the amounts for which details were available and: (i) the
reasons for non-availability of details of the balance amount. The
Secretary of the Ministry stated that difficulties in this casec had
arisen because firstly the VIPs and others staving in Kota House

*Not vetied by Audit. '
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as in some other hostels did not record the telephone calls in the
book meant for the purpose and secondly the telephone bills were
not received promptly. So, the person-in-charge of the hostel was
not fully aware of the calls booked by the allottees. Because of
late receipt of the telephone bills, he found it difficult to link them.
In the absence of any record in the book, a reference had to be
made to the ‘VIPs who were staying in the hostel on the relevant
dates for confirmation of the calls and payment of the bills. The
witness added that the problem in the case of Kota House had
ceased to exist from 1962 when it was transferred to the Ministry
of Defence. But. nevertheless the position had been reviewed in
order to avoid similar audit objection in the case of other hostels.
Certain remedial steps had been taken viz. (i) they tried to ensure
that VIPs did record their trunk calls; (ii) it had been arranged
with the P. & T. Department that ‘the bills were sent quickly, not
more than one month after the calls; so that the monthly bills
came regularly and if tracing was required, it should be done
quickly and the bills sent to the persons concerned. Asked why a
system of switchboard was not introduced, the witness stated that
it would have been more incanvenient to VIPs.

2.21. Giving the latest position of the recoveries the witness
stated that out of Rs. 21,945 outstanding as on 1-4-1966, a sum of
Rs. 7,519.57 p. had been realised. Details were also available of
another sum of Rs. 9802. Out of the amount of Rs. 9,802 for which
details were available. a sum of Rs. 1,887 had actually been realised
and recovery of the halance demand was in hand. The matter was
under correspondence with the State Governments, some of which
wanted certificates to the effect taht calls were official and that they
were actually made by the VIPs. The Department were doing their
best to issue these certificates. Asked how the Department could
issue such certificates, the witness stated that if a Minister occupied
the room. they certified that the call on the particular day must
have besn made bv him and it was assumed that it must have been

made by him for official purposes.

2.22. To a suggestion that there should be some centralised
system of recording calls, the witness stated that such a system
would take away the confidential or secret nature of the calls.

2.23. The Committee feel concerned over the accumulation of
trunk call charges pertaining to the years 1958-59 to 1962-63 in respect
of Kota House Hostel. They desire that vigorous efforts should be

made to liquidate the arrears.
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224. The Committee note the remedial measures taken by the
Department to prevent accumulation of such arrears which is a pro-
blem common in other hostels also. They suggest that the matter
should be kept under constant review and the feasibility of introduc-

ing a centralised sysiem of recording of telephone calls should be
examined.

LAND AND DEVELOPMENT OFFICE

Loss due to failure to observe proper procedure—Pages  85-86,
Para. 77.

2.25. (i) For additional construction by a lessee on a plot allot-
ted to him at’ Aurangzeb Road additional ground rent at
Rs. 3,233.76 per annum was recoverable from 18 July, 1958 and
another Rs. 1,705.20 per annum with effect from 11 April, 1959. The
lessee who was called upon in September, 1963 to pav these dues
disputed the claim on the ground that while furnishing no objec-
tion certificates to the local bodv for the additional construction. no
question of levy of additional rent (except in the case of basement
for which the additional rent was worked out at Rs. 62 per annum).
had been raised by the Land and Development Officer.

2.26. The Seccretary of the Ministry stated that the present posi-
tion was that while for a basement constructed in the house. the
Department had alreadv recovered the additional rent. the ques-
tion of levy af addition rent for the other additional construction
was still under discussion with the Ministry of Law. At one stage
the Law Ministry had given the advice that the Department were
not compeilent to do so, but the full facts of the case were being ex-
plained to them. The witness admitted that the case, which had
been going on since 1958-59, had been delayed. @When it was first
referred to the Chief Commissioner a certain order was passed that
these amounts should be recovered from the lessee. but in the same
note a reference was made that the general issue should be exam-
ined separately and another case similar to this one was mentioned
in respect of which a general issue had been raised. This case was
kept aside till the general issue was decided in the other case. It
was decided in 1961, but this particular case was lost sight of and
there was two years delay which was indefensible. The latest posi-
tion was that the lessee was disputing the charges and the matter
was still under reference to the Law Ministry.

2.27. The witness added that the delay in linking the files was
due to defect in the system. Asked if any remedial measures had
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been taken to avoid recurrence of such cases of delay, the witness
stated that the Land Development Officer had been trying to re-
organise his office for over a year and to improve the method of
working. Asked if fault of any individual was suspected in this
case, the witness replied “I do not think this was a deliberate
attempt to help anybody.” He added that the delay would not help
theNessee, as he had to pay interest on the amount and the more he
waited the more he had to pay.

2.28. The Committee regret to observe that the delay in raising the
demangq in this case does not speak well about the working of land
and Development Office. According to the Ministry’s own admission
the delay was due to defect in the system and was indefensible. The
Committee hope that with the reorganisation of this office which was
under way, such cases would not recur.

2.29. The Committee desire that the question of recovery of
rent for additional construction should be finalised early and the
Committee informed about the recovery so made.

Audit Report (Commercial), 1966

Government of India Presses—Pages 266—171—Section XXV Instal-
led Capacity and out-turn—Para 2.

2.30. The table below indicates the actual work done as compared
with the installed capacity in different presses working under the
Government of India:

(No. of impressions in Crores)

Name of the Year Installed Actual Percentage of
Press capacity output actual output
to installed
capacity
1 2 3 4 S
Government of 1952-63 640 4.30 67.19
India Press, 1963-64 8-63 4-62 53°54
New Delhi 1964-65 8-69 4.40 §0-63
Aligarh 1962-63 27.55 13°71 4976
1963-64 27.55 15°95 57-89
1964-65 27.55 1742 63.23
Nilokheri 1962-63 2.32 241 103 88
1963-64 4.52 5 o8 112°39
1964-65 452 559 123.57
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! 2 3 4 5
Nacsik 1952-63 34-77 8-08 23 .24
1963-64 42 73 11°'1I5§ 26 o9
1964-65 4597 12°67 2756
Gangtok 1952-63 1.68 0.92 54.76
1953-64 1.68 159 94-64
1964-65 1:68 1.03 61.31
Simla . 1952-63 3.72 2.28 6129
1963-64 4-60 2.61 56.74
1964-65 4-60 2.59 56-30

Temple Street. )

Calcutta Information not available as the necessarv records were

) be not maintained by the Department.
Santragachi, J

Calcutta
Hastings Street, Complete data not madz available to Audit.
Calcurta
Coimbatore The press went into  production only in January, 1964.

231. The Committee enquired whether the Department had
analysed the reasons for the low output in the presses at New Delhi,
Aligar, Simla. Nasik and Gangtok, especially in regard to Nasik
Press where the output was less than 30 per cent. The Secretary,
Ministry of Works, Housing and Urban Development stated that
they had not laid down the installed capacity for the presses. The
manufacturers sometimes indicated the performance of a particular
machine, but there was no fixed method by which installed capacity
of any press or machine could be worked out. The witness added
that the figures given in the Audit Report seemed to have been
obtained from the presses but these had not been given through
the Ministry nor had these been checked. The figures varied from
press to press according to what the manager of the press had in
'his mind about the installed capacity. The question regarding the
installed capacity of the various presses was raised by the Minister in
1964 at a conference held in Simla. After much discussion it was
realised that there was no set method in which the installed capa-
city could be determined. Orders were issued that some method
should be found to work out the installed capacity. In January,
1964, the National Productivity Council were asked to look into
the matter. They gave a preliminary report in 1966, which mention-
«ed that in order to work out the installed capacity they must carry
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out detailed inspection and investigations in recpect of at least two
presses, for which they had asked for further money to be paid to
them. The witness urged that the figures shown in the Audit para
as installed capacity were not realistic and to go by them would
lead to unsatisfactory results. He expressed the view that the per-
centage of 104 to 124 of actual output to installed capacity in the
case of Nilokheri press appeared to be fantastic. He added that the
Department were now finding out a systematic and scientific method
of working out the installed capacitv of the presses, which would
lead to realistic results.

2.32. The witness informed the Committee that when the de-
partment found that a press was not working at a certain level. they
sent out officers to see that the machines were working full time.
When they found that idle time was not justified, orders were issued
that the press should do more work and reorganise its working.
As a result the output had also gone up. The department had been
cystematically trying to introduce a second shift. When any parti-
cular machines were not available. the work had to pe sent to
private presses. The value of the work done by the private presses
had gone down from 43.67 lakhs in 1963-64 to Rs. 30 lakhs in 1964-65
and Rs. 20 lakhs in 1965-66. The provicion in this regard for 1966-67
was Rs. 16 lakhs.

2.33. The Committee stress the nced for serious attention being
given to the task of laying down a uniform and scientific method of
working out the installed capacity and its actual utilisation in the’
various Government presses with a view to having an effective con-
trol over their working and utilising the capacity. This is all the
more necessary in view of the fact that Government propose to es-
tablish more presses and that some work was still being entrusted to
private presses. The Committee would like to be informed about
the progress made in introducing a uniform system in this behalf.

Utilisation of machines—Page 266—Para 3. Sub-para (ii):

234. In the Government of India Presses, Aligarh and Faridabad,
17 machines worth Rs. 4.25 lakhs were installed after a lapse of 2 to
8 years from the date of purchase, while 3 machines valued at
Rs. 26,467 purchased in 1956 and 1959 by Temple Street Press,
Calcutta have not been commissioned so far (August, 1965) for want of
power.

2.35. The Management stated (December, 1965) that most of the
machines at Aligarh could not be installed within a reasonable period
for want of electric power.
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2.36. The Committee asked whether the question of availability
of electric power for running the machines was not considered by
the Deptt. before purchasing them. The witness stated that the
question of shortage of power was not within the knowledge of the
Department, when the machines were ordered. @He admitted that
they did not do preplanning with regard to availability of power to
the extent of their requirements. It was anticipated that power
would be available, but they ran into difficulties partly because
other rcquirements for power arose. The witness added that they

had now started taking into account availability of power in advance
for their expansion programme.

2.37. Asked if the delay in the installation and commissioning of
machines had led to allotment of work to private presses, the witness
replied that some additional work must have gone out.

2.38. The Committee regret to observe that there was inordinate
delay in these cases in the installation of the machines due to defec-
tive planning. They hope that such cases will not recur.

Costing system—Pages 267-268 para 4

2.39. The Presses are following the costing system prescribed in
the Government of India Press Hand Book, 1929 according to which
direct and indirect expenditure is distributed between the paving and
non-paving departments on the basis of the value of work done.
The existing system was examined in May, 1965 and a Pilot Scheme
of costing was introduced on an experimental basis in the New Delhi
Press in October. 1958. The main features of the Scheme are:

(a) the maintenance of job cards for each job done, and

(b) the introduction of a machine hour rate in assessing the
cost of work.

2.40. The Scheme has not been fully implemented even after a
lapse of 7 vears. The posting of the job cards is not up to date.
No reconciliation is effected of the material and labour cost booked

in the individual job cards with the payments actually made and
booked in the financial accounts.

2.41. The non-completion of job cards in time has defeated the
very object of the Pilot Scheme on which an expenditure of Rs. 76.913
was incurred up to 31st July, 1965.

2.42. The Management stated in September. 1965 that till De-
cember, 1964 the work of posting job cards was completed for the
period ending 1960 and that the posting of job cards for the year
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1963-64 was taken up as it was felt that the old arrears should be
left out till the extra staff was sanctioned. It has further been stated
that the desired results could not be achieved because of paucity
of staff.

2.43. The Department informed Audit in April, 1966 that at the
time of introduction of the scheme, it was visualised that the scheme
‘would be made applicable to cash jobs only, but subsequently it was
found that it was not possible to extract figures of the paying de-
partment only and it was therefore, decided to extend the scope of
the scheme in respect of all the jobs (paying or non-paying) receiv-
ed in the Government of India Press, New Delhi. Thus while the
work increased beyond all proportions the staff remained the same.

2.44. The Committee asked when the scope of the scheme was
enlarged whether the Department took up the matter with the Gov-
ernment for extrastaff. The Secretary of the Ministry stated that an
officer on special duty was appointed in the middle of 1958 who re-
ported in November. 1959. Thereafter the Chief Controller of
Printing approached the Ministry for creation of 4 posts of computors
and one post of estimator. The Ministry desired to have further
information which was furnished in August, 1960. In September.
1960. the Ministry again returned the case to the Chief Controller
asking for further justification to enable them to put up a convince-
ing case for the approval of the Ministries of Finance and Home
Affairs. In November, 1960, the Chief Controller referred the case
back and in February, 1961, it was returned to him for further justi-
fication. In November, 1964, after reviewing the position. the Chief
Controller again approached the Ministry for sanctioning the addi-
tional staff. The previous papers were asked for. At this stage
the Ministry’s file which had been sent to the Chief Controller in
May, 1965 was lost. In April, 1966, the Ministry asked the Chief
Controller to locate the file and if it was not traceable to take suif-
able action to reconstruct the file. The process was going on. Then
from time to time there had been a ban on recruitment.

2.45. Asked about the total expenditure incurred on the pilot
scheme so far, the witness stated that upto August, 1966, an ex-
penditure of Rs. 91,026 has been incurred. Asked further if a quali-
fied Accounts Officer had been posted to supervise this work om
which a sum of Rs. 91,026 had been spent, the witness replied in
the negative. The witness added that the officer on special duty
posted in 1958 had cost accountant’s qualification but he got himself
transferred. He admitted that “nothing very much has been done”
in regard to the scheme.
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2.46. The Committee are dissatisfied over the tardy progress in
gthe implementation of the Pilot Scheme of costing introduced in the
New Delhi Press in October, 1958. The scheme has not been fully
implemented for want of staff even after 8 years and in the mean-
time an expenditure of Rs. 91,026 has been incurred on it. Even a
qualified Cost Accounts Officer has not been posted to supervise this
work. According to the Ministry’s own admission ‘nothing very
much has been done” in regard to the scheme. The Committee desire
that vigorous steps should be taken to implement the scheme fully
and provide the staff required for the purpose.

2.47. The Committee asked about the action taken on their re-
commendation made in Para 20 of their 38th Report (Third Lok
Sabha) to investigate the reasons for high cost of production in
Government Presses. The Secretary of the Ministry stated that
after a meeting with technical officers, it was decided that a team
be set up to find some way of working out the cost of their publica-
tions and compare it with the quotations from private presses. A
proposal for creation of these posts had now been put up by the
Chief Controller of Printing and Stationerv to the Ministry.

248. The Committee hope that early action will be taken to set
up the team to devise a method of working out the cost of publica-
tions printed in Government presses. They suggest that periodical
reviews should be undertaken to assess the cost of printing in Gov-
ernment Presses vis-a-vis private presses with a view to improving
the efliciency of Government Presses.

Excessive purchase of paper—Page 268. para 5(a)

2.49. Out of a quantity of 24,827 reams of white cartridge paper
purchased by the Nasik Press in 1964-65, only 4.381 reams were ac-
tually consumed for printing forms in 1964-65, leaving a balance of
20,446 reams valued at Rs. 13.06 lakhs approximately as on 3lst
March, 1965. On the basis of the consumption recorded for the year
1964-65 the balance left at the end of March, 1965 would more than
meet the requirements of the next four or five years. The purchase

of such a large quantity of paper in excess of actual requirements
lacked justification.

2.50. The Committee asked about the present position of the sur-
plus stock of paper. The Secretary of the Ministry stated that the
stock position was satisfactory in the sense that they had only 8,000
reams left and the rest had been consumed. The present stock was
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sufficient for the current year and perhaps a small quantity may
spill-over next year. Explaining the reasons for indenting a
large quantity of paper, the witness stated that the usual practice
was that paper was purchased on the basis of an annual forecast of
requirements received from the P. & T. Deptt. But no printing was
actually undertaken till the print orders were received, which came
from time to time during the year. In the particular vear the fore-
cast was very large and the print orders received were very small,
resulting in a large balance being left in stock. The witness added
that the matter was under examination in consultation with P. & T.
Deptt. so that they should place a firm print order instead of giving
an estimate. .

2.51. Asked why they placed another indent for 3,320 reams dur-
ing 1965-66 when they had already a large stock of 20.446 rcams. the
witness replied that the additional stock was received against the
previous order; it was not a fresh order. Asked further, if any
indents were placed in 1965-66. the witness replied in thc negative.
Asked about the stocking arrangements, the witness stated that
their gcdowns were in very good condition and no detericration took
place.

2.52. The Committee regret to observe that the purchase of a
large quantity of paper merely on the basis of the annual forecast
of requirements given by the P. & T. Deptt. which did not fully
materialise, resulted in a heavy accumulation of paper. The Com-
mittee note that the question of placing firm orders by the P. & T.
Deptt. instead of giving an estimate is under examination. They
hope that the present practice of purchasing paper on the basis of
the forecast of requirements will be properly streamlined with a
view to avoid excessive purchase of paper in future,

Stores—para 6. sub-para (i)—Page 269

2.53. In Aligarh, Calcutta, Gangtok. Coimbatore and New Delhi
Presses, the reserve stock limits of stores and stock have not been
prescribed nor have bin cards been introduced. The Management
stated in October, 1965 that the matter regarding the fixing of maxi-

mum and minimum limits of stores was under consideration.
son—

2.54. According to Audit. intimation was received after Lhe print-
ing of the Audit Report that bin cards had been introduced in the
Coimbatore Press and also that maximum and minimum limits for
reserve stock had been fixed. The Committee enquired about the
present position regarding introduction of bin cards in the four other
presses. The witness stated that instructions about bin cards were
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issued in 1962. Preparations were reported to have heen completed
in the presses at Aligarh, Calcutta and Gangtok.

2.55. The Committee desire that early action should be taken to

introduce bin cards in the presses at Aligarh, Calcuita, Gangtok and
New Delhi.

Sub-para (iii)

2.56. A physical verification of type metal conducted in New Delhi
Press on 7th October, 1962 showed a net shortage of 25 tons 9 cwt.
0f mono metal valued at Rs. 63,500 The case was referred
to the Special Police Establishment on 6th  March, 1963.
The witness informed the Committee that the correct figure of
shortage in this case was 23 tons 8 kg. valued at Rs. 59.929. As re-
gards the action taken ac a result of the report of the SFE. the wil-
ness stated that one person who was in charge of the stuck had been
charge-sheeted and an enquiry was now under way.

2.57. The Committee desire that necessary remedial measures
should he taken to prevent the recurrence of such losses, They
would like to know the action taken against the persons concerned
in this case.
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